
 

1 
 

TOWN OF BELLEAIR SHORES 
Town Meeting  

 Tuesday, September 16, 2025 – Following Budget Hearing 
City of Belleair Bluffs Mayors Conference Room 

 2747 Sunset Blvd, Belleair Bluffs, FL 33770 
MINUTES 

 
Vice Mayor Storie opened the regular meeting at 5:15 p.m. 
 
Present upon roll call: Vice Mayor Storie, Commissioner Tolbert, Commissioner Lally, 
Commissioner Cain and Attorney Lewis. Absent, Mayor Blume. 
 
Consideration to Approve Agenda 
Commissioner Tolbert moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner Lally. The 
voice vote was unanimous. 
 
Comments from the Public on any Agenda Item – (3) THREE MINUTES 
No comments. 
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes – August 19, 2025 
Commissioner Cain moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Commissioner Tolbert. The  
voice vote was unanimous.  
  
Sheriff’s Report 
Sargent Schuler reported for August there were no arrest, 256 events with 269 units 
responding. Sixteen parking citations were issued, and no crashes occurred. Vice Mayor 
Storie stated response has always been quick when needed.  
 
Code Enforcement Report 
Deputy Trump reported for August that compliance on violations has been good. Permits 
have now been issued for 1440 Gulf Blvd. A fence has been placed at the rear of 1060 Gulf 
Blvd., and 180 Gulf Blvd has started cleaning out the property. Discussion ensued regarding 
the need to have debris removed from the beach, and a tractor needed to dig up these 
debris. Commissioner Lally offered to allow the tractor to come through her property to 
access the beach. Vice Mayor Storie asked for any public comment. Mayor Gattis from 
Belleair Beach stated they are always willing to step up and help. Belleair Beach resident 
Frank Bankard asked to have another post on the sign at the 6th Street access. Vice Mayor 
Storie stated he is working on this. Mayor Gattis asked for written permission from the 
owners of the property that they will be going on. After discussion Commissioner Lally moved 
to allow Belleair Beach to remove the debris with written notice from the owner of the 
property on Belleair Shore, seconded by Commissioner Tolbert. The voice vote was 
unanimous.  
 
 
 



Comm. Mtg.  9/16/2025 

2 
 

Suncoast Fire Report 
Chief Grimes reported there were four medical calls in August. The summit meeting he is 
holding is this week and he looks forward to meeting everyone. 
Treasurers Report – August 2025 
Town Clerk Palmer reviewed the report with the Commission. Commissioner Lally moved to 
approve the report, seconded by Commissioner Cain. The voice vote was unanimous. 
 
Counsel Report 
Attorney Lewis reported that the Commission received a letter from Mayor Gattis of Belleair 
Beach regarding the gates being locked at sunset with no pedestrian access between sunset 
and sunrise. Mayor Gattis and City Manager Riefler addressed the Commission offering to 
install pedestrian gates that would be self-close and latched, Belleair Beach would take on all 
the maintenance and care. Mayor Gattis would like the Commission to make a motion 
tonight to move forward. Discussion ensued, regarding other alternatives, liability, locking 
the gates vs self-latching. Commissioner Tolbert stated Belleair Shore should work with 
Belleair Beach on all issues to benefit both towns. Commissioner Tolbert stated Mayor Blume 
has in last few years has been looking for solution for some kind of gate access for Belleair 
Beach. Commissioner Tolbert would like to see some kind of automated system that Belleair 
Beach residents can access, but coming up with solution within seven days is unreasonable. 
Vice Mayor Storie stated a short-term solution would be adding additional three-foot chain 
to allow access. Attorney Lewis stated to show good faith it sounds like the consensus of the 
Commission is to go with the extra chain, as a short-term solution. Attorney Lewis 
recommends that the Commission designate someone to work with him and Belleair Beach 
attorney to produce an MOU for gate access. Commissioner Tolbert asked if approving the 
extra chain, does it open the town for any liability? Commissioner Lally also expressed 
concern regarding liability earlier in the meeting. Attorney Lewis stated no it does not. After 
discussion Vice Mayor Storie opened the discussion for public comment.  
 
Belleair Beach resident, Joseph Manzo commented on his letter he sent to Belleair Shore in 
July regarding the same question.  
 
Mayor Gattis stated he wanted to keep this discussion light and liked, and Joe Manzo does 
not speak for him, he speaks on his own accord, and his message was not blessed by Belleair 
Beach Commission.  
 
Belleair Beach Commissioner Bankard commented that he noticed last night cars in the 
access lot with no tags, and again today bikes and electric bikes in the access.  
 
There being no other comments, Commissioner Lally moved to add three-foot of chain to the 
gates to allow three-foot access for pedestrian use after sunset and before sunrise and to 
designate Vice Mayor Storie to work on the MOU along with Attorney Lewis, seconded by 
Commissioner Cain. The voice vote was unanimous. 
 
Resolution 04-2025 FY 2025 Budget Amendments 
Attorney Lewis read Resolution 04-20205 by title. Town Clerk Palmer stated she worked with  
Andy Tess to complete these amendments. Vice Mayor Storie asked for public comments.  



Comm. Mtg.  9/16/2025 

3 
 

There being none, Commissioner Lally moved to approve Resolution 04-2025 and the 
amendments, seconded by Commissioner Tolbert. The voice vote was unanimous.  
 
Approval of Records Disposition Request 
Town Clerk Palmer stated she has gathered more records, these are documents that can be 
destroyed by following the State of Forida retention schedule. Commissioner Tolbert moved 
to approve the disposition request, seconded by Commissioner Lally. The voice vote was 
unanimous. 
 
First Amendment Pinellas County Multimodal Impact Fee Interlocal Agreements 
Attorney Lewis explained Belleair Shore is responsible for collecting these fees for new  
construction. Belleair Shore has an Interlocal Agreement for building services with Pinellas  
County and this is an amendment to the agreement. Following further discussion  
Commissioner Tolbert moved to approve and execute the First Amendment, seconded by 
 Commissioner Cain. The voice vote was unanimous.  
 
Mayor/Commissioner Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
Commissioner Tolbert reported that he was contacted by a resident regarding debris behind 
his home, a carcass of a gutted shark, pizza boxes, etc. The resident contacted the sheriff's 
office and was told had they seen the people fishing there was nothing they could do, as 
fishing is legal. Commissioner Tolbert stated this is a safety issue and is not sure what the 
town can do about it. Attorney Lewis stated he will follow up at the next meeting. 
 
Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items – (3) THREE MINUTES 
Frank Bankard of Belleair Beach stated Belleair Beach does help Belleair Shore when needed, 
adding Belleair Beach is entertaining, using their public works building to house Pinellas 
Suncoast Fire personnel that will benefit both towns. 
 
Joseph Manzo, Belleair Beach resident, commented on his July 21st letter to the town and the 
sign at 6th Street Access. 
 
Bary Grey, Belleair Beach resident, asked where the erosion control line was. Mr. Grey was 
directed to call Pinellas County. 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Adjourn 
Commissioner Tolbert moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Cain. The 
voice vote was unanimous. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Mary F. Palmer, MMC 
Town Clerk 


